
 

 

 

Public Facilities Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
This meeting will be held both in person in Council Chambers at 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort, 
and virtually through Zoom.  Please be aware that there is limited seating available for the in-

person meeting and attendees must practice social distancing 

Monday, September 20, 2021 
3:30 PM 

(or at the conclusion of the Finance Committee Meeting, no sooner than 3:00PM) 

AGENDA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - JULY 19, 2021 AND AUGUST 16, 2021  

6. CITIZENS COMMENTS - (ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the 
meeting will limit their comments to no longer than three (3) minutes (a total of 15 minutes) and will 
address Council in a respectful manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the 
use of profane, abusive, or obscene language) 

7. ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

8. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD FOR RFQ 060821 CONSULTING SERVICES TO PROVIDE AN EVALUATION 
AND STUDY OF ISSUES RELATED TO BEAUFORT COUNTY PUBLIC BOAT LANDINGS ($312,965.00) 

9. REQUEST TO PURCHASE CATERPILLAR MODEL 323 EXCAVATOR W/ LONG REACH ($221,823.85) 

10. REQUEST TO PURCHASE OF A TIGER TRUCKAT MOWER ($218,622.40)  

11. REQUEST TO PURCHASE PUBLIC WORKS - PURCHASE OF FORD F550 ($149,826.00)  

12. RECOMMENDATION TO AWARD RFQ #042721E, INDOOR POOL RENOVATIONS ARCHITECTURE AND 
ENGINEERING SERVICES (> $1,000)  

13. DISCUSSION ON FINANCING FOR THE HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT EXPANSION 

14. WIMBEE CREEK FISHING PIER – CONDITION ASSESSMENT   

1



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

15. UPDATE 170 IMPROVEMENTS (BETWEEN 278 AND 462)  

16. SC 170 ACCESS MANAGEMENT PLAN NORTH  

17. AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A MODIFICATION OF 
DRAINAGE EASEMENT ASSOCIATED WITH PARCEL #R112-031-000-0628-0000 

18. CHAIRMAN'S WRAP UP 

19. ADJOURNMENT  

2



 Public Facilities Committee Minutes 
Monday, July 19, 2021 at 2:00 PM 

 

PRESENT 

Committee Chairman Stu Rodman 

Committee Vice-Chair York Glover 

Council Member Brian Flewelling 

Council Member Joseph F. Passiment 

Council Member Gerald Dawson 

Council Member Lawrence McElynn 

 

ABSENT 

Council Member D. Paul Sommerville 

Council Member Chris Hervochon 

Council Member Alice Howard 

Council Member Mark Lawson 

Council Member Logan Cunningham 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Rodman called the meeting to order at 2:00 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chairman Rodman led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

FOIA 

Chairman Rodman noted that Public notification of this meeting had been 
published, posted, and distributed in compliance with the South Carolina 
Freedom of Information Act. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion to Amend: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, seconded by 
Committee Vice-Chair Glove to amend the Agenda to add an item to Executive 
Session: Pursuant to S.C. Code Sec. 30-4-70(a)(2) receipt of legal advice where 
the advice relates to pending claims and move Executive session to item #8. 
The motion was approved without objection.  

 
Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, seconded by Committee 
Vice-Chair Glover to approve the amended agenda. The motion was approved 
without objection.  
 

 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion: It was moved by Committee Vice-Chair Glover, seconded by Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Facilities 

Committee Meeting 

2021 Committee Objectives 

1. TRANSPORTATION 
2. SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING 
3. COUNTY FACILITIES 
4. AIRPORTS 
5. DAUFUSKIE FERRY 
6. CAPITAL INVESTMENT 

 

Chairman 

STU RODMAN 
 

Vice Chairman 
YORK GLOVER 

 

Committee Members 
CHRIS HERVOCHON 
BRIAN FLEWELLING 

MARK LAWSON 

 
County Administrator 

ERIC GREENWAY 

 

Clerk to Council 

SARAH W. BROCK 

 
Staff Support 

CHUCK ATKINSON 
JARED FRALIX 

 

Administration Building 
Beaufort County Government  

Robert Smalls Complex 
100 Ribaut Road 

 
Contact 

Post Office Drawer 1228 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228  

 (843) 255-2180 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 
 

www.beaufortcountysc.gov 

 

 

3

Item 5.

http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/
http://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/


Public Facilities Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Member Flewelling to approve minutes from May 17, 2021. The motion was approved without objection.  

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

 Transportation Sales Tax Referendum Discussion  

* See Presentation *  

Status: For Informational Purposes Only 

 
Introduction of the County Facilities 10-year Plan  

* See Presentation *  

Status: For Informational Purposes Only. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Pursuant to S.C. Code Sec. 30-4-70(a)(2) receipt of legal advice where the legal advice relates to matters 
covered by the attorney-client privilege. 

Pursuant to S.C. Code Sec. 30-4-70(a)(2) receipt of legal advice where the advice relates to pending claims. 

Motion: It was moved that Committee Vice-Chair Glover, seconded by Council Member Passiment to go into 
executive session. The motion was approved without objection. 

 
MATTERS ARISING OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 

No matters arising out of executive session  

 
Assistant County Administrators Report - Jared Fralix  

Eric Greenway presented an update about the growth plan with future needs of staff and SIG 
recommendations.  

Jared Fralix presented updates on:  

1. Airports 
2. Boat Landing Master Plan Study 
3. Electric Vehicles Consultant  
 
Cindy Carter presented a presentation of the Convenience Center Decal System Update  
 
Jared Fralix presented updates on:  

B.  2018 Sales Tax Update  
D.  278 -Corridor Funding Update 
C.  Discussion of additional Littering crew 
 
Status: For Informational Purposes Only 

  
Hilton Head Island Airport (HXD) – TBE Work Authorization 2119-2101 (Fiscal impact:) $531,242 (Funded 
100% (reimbursable) by FAA Grant 47  

4

Item 5.



Public Facilities Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Jon Rembold stated the existing runway and taxiway at HXD need additional strengthening and rehabilitation 
due to the increased commercial jet aircraft using the airport. Professional services to be provided by Talbert, 
Bright & Ellington, Inc. (TBE) will include full engineering design services, bidding, and construction 
administration. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member McElynn, seconded by Committee Vice-Chair Glover to move 
forward to the County Council for a recommendation of approval. The motion was approved without 
objection.   

 Beaufort Executive Airport (ARW) – New Fuel provider – Campbell Oil Company Fiscal impact: 51000011-
58000 (Purchases-Fuel/Lubricants) $375,000 (Resale for profit) 

Jon Rembold stated the Beaufort Executive Airport purchases aviation fuels for resale at a profit. The term of 
the contract for the current provider expires soon and Campbell Oil has been selected as the next provider 
following an RFP and interview process. Campbell Oil is a family-owned business that has grown into a major 
provider in the Southeast. Their reviews are strong, especially in the areas of reliability and customer 
service. Campbell Oil is a Phillips 66-branded provider and offers other benefits to the airport such as 
marketing assistance, customer loyalty programs, inexpensive fuel trucks with service plans, staff safety 
training, and point of sale software assistance. The airport purchases the aviation fuels and then sells the fuel 
at a profit. This is a top revenue line item for the airport. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member McElynn, seconded by Committee Vice-Chair Glover to move 
forward to the County Council for a recommendation of approval. The motion was approved without 
objection.  

  
Airport's FY22 contract renewals. 

     A. Volarie Aviation Consulting - $53,400 
     B. Securitas Security - $127,764 

Dave Thomas stated to improve our process for renewing annual contract renewals a summary sheet (see the 
attached excel sheet) is provided for Committee’s review and approval. The summary sheet provides the 
vendor name, purpose, requesting department, account name and number, prior and current contract cost, 
term, and notes. The Department Head responsible for the contract or their representative will be available 
for questions during the Committee meeting. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member McElynn, seconded by Committee Vice-Chair Glover to move 
forward to the County Council for a recommendation of approval. The motion was approved without 
objection.  

 
Beaufort County and City of Beaufort Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment for Airport Frontage Road 

Jared Fralix stated in March 2020, Beaufort County and the City of Beaufort entered into an intergovernmental 
agreement for the construction and improvements at US 21 Airport Area and Airport Frontage Road (Lost 
Island Connectivity Project). Through the development of the project, Beaufort County and the City of Beaufort 
has a desire to clarify right of way language in the agreement. 
 
Motion: It was moved by Committee Vice-Chair Glover, seconded by Council Member Passiment to approve 
the execution of the Beaufort County and City of Beaufort Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment for 
Airport Frontage Road to move forward to County Council for approval. The motion was approved without 
objection.  

 Recommendation of Award for RFP #032421– Project Management, Landscape Maintenance Services for 
Linear Medians for Various County Roads ($236,892.00) 

5

Item 5.



Public Facilities Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Jared Fralix stated due to the maintenance responsibility of several linear project areas (Sections of Highway 
278 medians, Spanish Moss Trail & Bluffton Parkway), staff recognized that these specific areas would be 
better suited to be contracted out. Initial discussions were conducted with several landscape contractors to 
gauge interest in potential bidders for this project. This project was put out for bid, four bids were received 
with County staff choosing The Greenery, the lowest, most responsive, and responsible bidder. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, Seconded by Council Member McElynn to approve the 
recommendation of award for RFP #032421– Project Management, Landscape Maintenance Services for Linear 
Medians for Various County Roads to The Greenery to move forward to County Council for approval. The 
motion was approved without objection.  

 CITIZEN COMMENTS  

Robert Fitzgerald emailed regarding US 278 Corridor improvements, this was forwarded to County Council, 
County Administrator, and appropriate staff.  

Ananta Gopalan submitted a County Council Feedback form regarding 5B Bluffton Parkway Realignment, this 
was forward to County Council, County Administrator, and appropriate staff.  

Thomas Senigla submitted a County Council Feedback form regarding 5B Extension, this was forwarded to 
County Council, County Administrator, and appropriate staff.  

Linda Benninger emailed regarding proposed changes to Bluffton/Hilton Head Island Bridge and 278 Corridor. 
This was forwarded to County Council, County Administrator, and appropriate staff.  

Betty Black submitted a County Council Feedback form regarding bridges and fixing dirt roads. This was 
forwarded to County Council, County Administrator, and appropriate staff.  

Mary Delle Robinson submitted a County Council Feedback form regarding 5B Bluffton Parkway. This was 
forwarded to County Council, County Administrator, and appropriate staff.  

Joshua Hirsch submitted a County Council Feedback form regarding extension of 5B. This was forwarded to 
County Council, County Administrator, and appropriate staff.  

Carmen (no last name) submitted a County Council Feedback form regarding extension of 5B. This was 
forwarded to County Council, County Administrator, and appropriate staff.  
 

 Chairman wrap up  

Beaufort County Transportation Committee    - 1 vacancy – District 7 

Construction Adjustment and Appeals Board - 2 Vacancies - Design Professional/Contractor/Building Industry 

Stormwater Management Utility Board - 1 vacancy – District 8 

 
ADJOURNMENT  

The meeting was adjourned 3:54 PM  

 

6

Item 5.



 

 

 

Public Facilities Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
**AT THE CONCLUSION OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE BUT NO SOONER THAN 3:00 

PM**This meeting will be held both in person and at County Council, 100 Ribaut Road, 
Beaufort, and virtually through Zoom.  Please be aware that there is limited seating available 

for the in-person meeting and attendees must practice social distancing 

Monday, August 16, 2021 
3:30 PM 

MINUTES 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

Chairman Rodman called the meeting to order at 3:28 PM 

PRESENT 
Committee Chairman Stu Rodman 
Committee Vice-Chair York Glover 
Council Member Brian Flewelling 
Council Member Joseph F. Passiment 
Council Member D. Paul Sommerville 
Council Member Gerald Dawson 
Council Member Chris Hervochon 
Council Member Alice Howard 
Council Member Mark Lawson 
Council Member Lawrence McElynn 
 
ABSENT 
Council Member Logan Cunningham 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chairman Rodman led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. FOIA 

 PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion to Amend: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, seconded by Council Member 
Sommerville to amend the agenda to do the items in this order: Airport items, citizens comment, add 

7

Item 5.



Public Facilities Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

assistant administrators report, the remainder of agenda items. The motion to approve the amended 
agenda was approved without objection.  
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, seconded by Committee Vice-Chair Glover to 
approve minutes from June 21, 2021. The motion was approved without objection. 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

6. HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT PRESENTATION & TERMINAL PROJECT FUNDING DISCUSSION 

Jon Rembold stated the terminal project and its funding at previous Finance and Public 
Facilities Committees. The terminal project has been in design for about 18 months with significant 
input from a stakeholder group made up of a cross-section of community members. It is now nearly 
ready to bid, but the funding solution must be complete before offering the bid opportunity. 

Status: For Informational Purposes Only 

Presentation: To see the full presentation click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/130484 

 

7.  RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO ACCEPT FAA GRANT 47 (FISCAL IMPACT: 
INCOMING GRANT FUNDS - $1,233,622) 

Jon Rembold stated the projects that will be 100% funded by this grant include the design and bidding of 
the runway and taxiway strengthening project and the procurement of a new Aircraft Rescue and 
Firefighting Vehicle (previously approved by Council in June 2021) 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, Seconded by Committee Vice-Chair Glover to 
move forward to County Council for approval on August 23, 2021. The motion was approved without 
objection 

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/130484 

The Vote: Committee Chairman Rodman, Committee Vice-Chair Glover, Council Member Flewelling, 
Council Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Dawson, Council Member 
Hervochon, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson, Council Member McElynn. The vote 
10:0  
 

8. Citizen Comment  

Carol Crutchfield commented about King George Road into the county road system.  
 

9. Request for Private Road Acceptance of King George Road into County Road System 

Jared Fralix stated King George Road is a private road (~872 LF) located in the Verdier View subdivision 
off SC 46 in Bluffton. The Verdier View Association was incorporated on 03/14/1985 and dissolved on 
8/11/1992. Associated covenants state that owners will automatically become a member of Verdier 
View Association, Inc and shall be entitled to all the rights of membership as well as the obligations 
imposed upon them. Since this HOA was dissolved, roads have deteriorated with no means to repair. A 
particular concern is a commercial property at the entrance of the neighborhood utilizing 18-wheeler 

8

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/130484
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/130484


Public Facilities Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

delivery trucks causing potholes and road erosion. Neil Desai, P.E., the Public Works Director, has 
estimated road and drainage repair costs to be around $70,000 and he has concerns associated with 
road acceptance. 

Status: To move forward to the next Committee meeting. 

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/130484  

 

10. Assistant County Administrators Report - Jared Fralix  

Status: For Informational Purposes Only 

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/130484 

 

11. Discussion of SC 170 Improvement Project (Near-term Improvements) 

Jared Fralix stated LATS commissioned an Access Management Study for SC 170 in 2019. The study area 
included a 4.4-mile segment from US 278 to SC 462. Coming from the report, recommendations were 
developed for near-term, intermediate-term and long-term improvements. In April, County Council 
commissioned the design on the short-term improvements (approx. $200k). It is anticipated the near-
term improvements have a construction cost of $3,000,000. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Flewelling, seconded by Council Member Lawson to move 
forward to County Council for approval of 1.5 million from impact fees for the construction of the 
intersection by Highway 462. The motion was approved without objection.  

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/130484 

The Vote: Committee Chairman Rodman, Committee Vice-Chair Glover, Council Member Flewelling, 
Council Member Passiment, Council Member Sommerville, Council Member Dawson, Council Member 
Hervochon, Council Member Howard, Council Member Lawson, Council Member McElynn. The vote 
10:0  
 

12. PUBLIC FACILITIES VACANCIES  

Status: For Informational Purposes Only 

Discussion: To see the full discussion click the link below. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/130484 

 

13. ADJOURNMENT  

The meeting adjourned at 4:44 PM  

9

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/130484
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/130484
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/130484
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/130484


BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of award for RFQ 060821 Consulting Services to provide an evaluation and study of issues 
related to Beaufort County Public Boat Landings ($312,965.00) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – September 20, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator, Engineering  

Mark Roseneau, Director, Facility Management (Alternate) 

15 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Beaufort County published a solicitation for the Consulting Services to provide a study of issues related to 
Beaufort County Public Boat Landings on May 7, 2021 to which 4 firms submitted qualifications.   A 
committee of 4 evaluated the submissions and determined that Creech and Associates, PLLC was the most 
qualified. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Publicly owned boat landings contribute greatly to the economic impact of the tourism and recreation 
industries, and the quality of life of the Beaufort County’s residents by affording boating access to the creeks, 
rivers, bays, and sounds of our coastal county. The responsibility of providing maintenance, facility upgrades, 
new facilities, and security increasingly falls on the Beaufort County, with traditional funding sources 
requested annually. Beaufort County desires to make an effort to establish reliable funding sources, create 
uniform standards, and enhance safety, accessibility, security, and environmental compatibility. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The proposal received from Creech and Associates for consulting services is $284,515.00.  With a 10% 
contingency of $28,450, the final contract amount is $312,965. The County has $150,000 from an A/H Tax 
Grant already in place for this project. A second A/H Tax Grant will be applied for in December for the 
shortfall of $162,965. Should the grant prove unsuccessful, the remainder contract value will be paid from 
Facilities Management account number 10001310-51130.                            

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends award of RFQ 060821 Consulting Services for Public Boat Landings to Creech and 
Associates. ($312,965) 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of award RFQ 060821 Consulting Services for Beaufort County 
Public Boat Landings to Creech and Associates. 

(Next step:  Move forward to County Council for approval.) 

 

 
10

Item 8.



                                                                    

Beaufort County Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment Proposal DRAFT 1 

 
 
 
August 24, 2021 

 

David L. Thomas, CPPB, CPPO 
Purchasing Director 
Beaufort County 
106 Industrial Village Road, Bldg. #2  
Beaufort, S.C. 29901 

 
Re: Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment (RFQ 060821) 

 
David: 
 
Creech & Associates, PLLC is pleased to present you with a proposal for design services to complete a 
comprehensive study of issues related to the design, construction, operation, maintenance, and use of 
public boat landing access within Beaufort County. The following is a general understanding of the 
project goals and scope of work: 

• The assessment is needed to establish the condition of current facilities, create procedures for 
their maintenance and upgrades, and plan for new facilities. 

• The results will provide a plan with both short-term and long-term solutions for improving the 
quality of life of Beaufort County residents by offering better boating access to the various 
waterways of the coastal county.  

• The process is estimated to encompass 12 months and is scheduled to commence in October 
2021. The starting date is pending the completed contract approval by the County. Due to the 
potential for state and local authorities to modify state-wide orders related to COVID-19, the 
schedule may be extended accordingly. 

The consultant team serving the project is as follows: 

• Jon Guerry Taylor & Associates, Inc. (JGT)  Marine Engineering  
• ADC Engineering, Inc. (ADC)    Civil Engineering 
• Chmura Economics & Analytics (CHM)   Economic Impact Analysis 
• Davenport Public Finance (DAV)   Capital Planning  

 
The fee is structured around the eight (8) tasks identified in our request for qualifications. The final 
deliverable will be an 8.5 x 11 formatted electronic document that provides a comprehensive summary of 
each task and the relative findings and conclusions. A breakdown of the deliverables is as follows: 
 
 

 

11

Item 8.



 Beaufort County Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment DRAFT 1  2 
 

Task 1: Initial Scoping Meeting with Advisory Committee  

A. Coordination meeting with the Advisory Committee to confirm scope and schedule 

Task 2: Preliminary Information Gathering and Kickoff Meeting  

A. Prepare and coordinate a fee proposal and project schedule for approval 
B. Initiate project ShareFile site for data transfer 
C. Receive from the County various data required and requested to initiate the study: all survey 

plats, CAD files, drawings of existing facilities, and copies of previous studies 
D. Develop base files for each site with available information including surveys, aerials, historic 

data, and previous study information  
E. Kickoff meeting with the Advisory Committee   

Task 3: Individual Landing Site Assessments 

A. Conduct a physical site assessment for upland elements of each location identified in Attachment 
A that includes the following components: 

-  Vehicular and pedestrian circulation 
-  Parking capacity 
-  Stormwater drainage 
-  Lighting 
-  ADA compliance 

B. Conduct a physical structural non-invasive assessment of the boat ramps and piers 
C. Conduct a hydrographic survey and dredging evaluation at the Broad River Boat Landing only. 

Scope of work does not include any additional hydrographic surveys or below surface evaluations. 
D. Develop recommendations for subsequent repairs including preliminary cost estimates 
E. Compile each site into a standard document format with a single-page snapshot summary of 

significant findings 

Task 4: Standard Operations Manual 

A. Compile recommendations to serve as standard methods and procedures for county-wide facility 
and maintenance standards for existing and new boat landing sites 

B. Incorporate the following design criteria: 
-  Ordinance for use and security 
-  ADA compliance 
-  Lighting  
-  Parking  
-  Wayfinding/signage 
-  Accommodation of non-motorized watercraft 
- Environmental best management practices 
-  Pollution prevention best management practices 

C. Create an inspection checklist for future use in maintaining sites 
D. Present a draft to the Advisory Committee  
E. Revise per owner review comments and provide as a stand-alone document 

12

Item 8.



 Beaufort County Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment DRAFT 1  3 
 

 

Task 5: Regional Master Plan of Boating Access 

A. Review and evaluate boat landing site access on a county-wide scale  
B. Incorporate an analysis of the following components: 

- New landing site considerations 
- Strategies to address direct and secondary impacts 
- Environmental constraints 

C. Conduct three (3) public outreach sessions in strategic locations to facilitate input 
D. Present master plan and observations to the Advisory Committee 
E. Develop a list of priorities for implementation based on direction 
F. Provide as a stand-alone document for separate funding source identification 

Task 6: Economic Impact Analysis 

A. Conduct a household survey to understand the potential use of boat landings in Beaufort and the 
surrounding counties. 

- This survey will be a telephone survey with a target population of current and potential 
boat users from Beaufort and surrounding counties. 

- Frequency and duration of recreation trips 
- Associated use of motels and restaurant facilities 

B. Utilize the Jobs EQ economic impact model to estimate the direct, indirect, and induced impact 
in terms of spending and jobs created, as well as the business diversity impacts 

C. Identify quantitatively the economic diversity benefit of the boat landing and how expansion of 
facilities can satisfy public recreation and economic needs 

Task 7: Capital Planning 

A. Utilize the cost estimates from the site assessments, data from the economic impact analysis, 
recommendations of the regional boating access master plan, and other additional county 
financial information to create a capital funding model. 

B. Identify the desired capital plan that addresses the funding required to implement the study 
scope over a 5–10 year duration. 

Task 8: Development of Final Report 

A. Compile an 8.5 x 11 format final report to document the study 
B. Document the entire process from the kick-off meeting to the final recommendations  
C. Organize all raw data into a clear format accompanied by charts, photographs, diagrams, 

executive summaries, and other supporting information  
D. Share an electronic draft with the Advisory Committee for review and comment prior to 

finalizing the report. 
E. Modify report based on owner feedback and suggestions on final draft 
F. Quality Control review of entire document 
G. Final report presented to the Advisory Committee  
H. Ongoing support from the team at Creech & Associates after conclusion of the project 

13

Item 8.



 Beaufort County Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment DRAFT 1  4 
 

A breakdown of lump sum fees by each major category is as follows: 

• Task 1: Initial Scoping and Kickoff Meeting with Advisory Committee   $10,765.00 
• Task 2: Preliminary Information Gathering        $44,253.00 
• Task 3: Individual Landing Site Assessments    $132,404.00 
• Task 4: Standard Operations Manual       $15,020.00 
• Task 5: Regional Master Plan of Boating Access      $20,195.00 
• Task 6: Economic Impact Analysis        $14,388.00 
• Task 7: Capital Planning         $23,070.00 
• Task 8: Development of Final Report       $24,421.00 

• Total                                  $284,515.00 

The Advisory Committee will be established by County leadership and will include key personnel to 
provide oversight and guide the study. There will be a total of six (6) meetings with the Advisory 
Committee included in this scope, in addition to the final presentation. There will be a total of one (1) 
presentation to County Council for the final report, and three (3) public outreach sessions. A recurring 
bimonthly conference call or net meeting will be established to maintain open communications 
throughout the study. 

 
All reimbursable expenses are included in the base fee with the condition that all deliverables will be 
submitted in electronic format and no hard copies will be required. Any additions to the scope of work 
outlined in this proposal, including but not limited to site visits, presentations, deliverables, etc. will be 
considered an additional service and will be billed hourly per the 2021 rates listed in Attachment B. All 
additional services must be authorized in writing prior to commencing work.  

 
Creech & Associates appreciates the opportunity to serve Beaufort County. If you have any questions, 
please feel free to contact us.  

 
Yours truly:      
Creech and Associates, PLLC  
 
 

 
 
 
Brent J. Green, LEED AP    Accepted: David L. Thomas, CPPB, CPPO 
Principal 
 
cc: Michael Supino, AIA     Date 
      file

14

Item 8.



 Beaufort County Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment DRAFT 1  5 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 
List of 20 boat landings to be included in the site assessment scope of work: 
 

1. Alljoy Boat Landing   265 Alljoy Road 
2. Bluffton Oyster Factory Park  75 Wharf Street 
3. Brickyard Creek Boat Landing*  275 Brickyard Point Road 
4. Broad River Boat Landing  1050 Robert Smalls Parkway 
5. Buddy and Zoo Boat Landing  40 Station Creek Drive 
6. Butcher’s Island Boat Landing  10 Butcher’s Road 
7. C.C. Haigh, Jr. Boat Landing  1640 Fording Island Rd Extension 
8. Cross Island Boat Landing  68 Helmsman Way 
9. Daufuskie Island Boat Landing  13 Haig Point Road 
10. Eddings Point Boat Landing*  511 Eddings Point Road 
11. Edgar Glenn Boat Landing  305 Okatie Highway 
12. Grays Hill Boat Landing   395 Clarendon Road 
13. H.E. Trask, Sr. Boat Landing*  325 Sawmill Creek Road 
14. Marshland Boat Landing  97 Marshland Road 
15. Paige Point Boat Landing  99 Paige Point Landing Road 
16. Parris Island Boat Landing  50 Marina Boulevard 
17. Sams Point Boat Landing  1009 Sams Point Road 
18. Steel Bridge Boat Landing  993 Charleston Highway 
19. Sugar Hill Boat Landing   40 Sugar Hill Landing Road 
20. White Hall Boat Landing  33 Sea Island Parkway 
 

List of 6 piers to be included in the site assessment scope of work: 
 

1. Camp St. Mary’s Fishing Pier  119 Camp St. Mary’s Road 
2. C.C. Haigh Landing Fixed Pier  1640 Fording Island Rd Extension 
3. Daufuskie Landing Fixed Pier  13 Haig Point Road 
4. Factory Creek Fishing Pier  33 Sea Island Parkway 
5. Old House Creek Pier   50 Sterling Point Drive 
6. Whale Branch Fishing Pier  216 Seabrook Road 

 
* Indicates boat landings currently scheduled for improvements 

 
 
 
 
 
 

15

Item 8.



 Beaufort County Public Boat Landing Facilities Assessment DRAFT 1  6 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
 
2021 Hourly Rates 
 
CREECH & ASSOCIATES 

Principal       $200.00 
Senior Designer/Associate/Team Leader   $175.00 
Project Architect     $160.00 
BIM/Technical      $130.00 
Administrative         $90.00 
 
JON GUERRY TAYLOR 

Senior Civil Engineer     $175.00 
Civil Engineer      $175.00 
Civil Engineering Graduate    $125.00 
Engineering Designer     $100.00 
Senior Land Planner     $175.00 
Permitting/Environmental Specialist   $175.00 
Land Planner      $105.00 
Administrative        $50.00 

16

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Request to purchase Caterpillar Model 323 Excavator w/ Long Reach ($221,823.85) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee Meeting – September 20, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

Neil J. Desai, P.E., Public Works Director 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The Public Works 2002 Volvo 290 caught fire while on a jobsite and it was determined by the County’s 
insurance company to be a total lost.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Purchase of CAT 323 Excavator with the long reach boom.  Since there is a current inventory of CAT products, 
maintenance costs will be streamlined.  The excavator is a piece of equipment that is used in numerous 
different facets, it is essential to the operations of the Public Works Department. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

A quote has been provided from Blanchard CAT in the amount of $221,823.85.  The funding source for this 
item was approved in the FY2022 budget meeting for Public Works account number 10001301-54000, 
additionally the insurance claim proceeds will also go towards this purchase as well. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Public Works Director and the Fleet Manager recommend approving the purchase of the CAT 323 to replace 
the Volvo 290. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to either accept/deny the recommendation to approve the purchase of the Cat 323 Excavator w/ 
Long Reach. 

Next Steps - A Majority Vote for Acceptance by Committee would move item forward to final acceptance by 
full County Council vote. 

 

17

Item 9.



18

Item 9.



19

Item 9.



20

Item 9.



21

Item 9.



22

Item 9.



23

Item 9.



24

Item 9.



25

Item 9.



26

Item 9.



27

Item 9.



28

Item 9.



29

Item 9.



30

Item 9.



31

Item 9.



32

Item 9.



33

Item 9.



34

Item 9.



35

Item 9.



36

Item 9.



37

Item 9.



38

Item 9.



39

Item 9.



40

Item 9.



41

Item 9.



42

Item 9.



43

Item 9.



44

Item 9.



45

Item 9.



46

Item 9.



47

Item 9.



48

Item 9.



49

Item 9.



50

Item 9.



51

Item 9.



52

Item 9.



53

Item 9.



54

Item 9.



55

Item 9.



56

Item 9.



57

Item 9.



58

Item 9.



59

Item 9.



60

Item 9.



61

Item 9.



62

Item 9.



63

Item 9.



64

Item 9.



65

Item 9.



66

Item 9.



67

Item 9.



68

Item 9.



69

Item 9.



70

Item 9.



71

Item 10.



72

Item 10.



73

Item 10.



74

Item 10.



75

Item 10.



76

Item 10.



77

Item 10.



78

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Request to purchase of a Tiger Truckat Mower 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee Meeting – September 20, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

Neil J. Desai, P.E., Public Works Director 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Replacing Asset# 21300 – 2002 John Deere Utility Tractor 6320 that caught fire and it was determine by the 
County’s insurance company to be a total lost.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Purchase of Truckat Mower is an essential piece of equipment that will utilized by the Public Works 
Department to maintain the County’s roadside Right of Ways. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Tiger Corporation, a Sourcewell/State Contract vendor has proposed a cost of $218,622.40. The funding 
source for this purchase was approved in FY2022 budget meeting for Public Works account number 
10001301-54000. In addition, the insurance reimbursement will be applied to the purchase as well. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Public Works Director and Fleet Manager recommends approving the purchase of the Truckat Mower to 
replace the John Deer Tractor. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to either accept/deny the recommendation to approve the purchase of the Truckat Mower 

Next Steps - A Majority Vote for Acceptance by Committee would move item forward to final acceptance by 
full County Council vote. 

 

79

Item 10.



80

Item 11.



81

Item 11.



82

Item 11.



83

Item 11.



84

Item 11.



85

Item 11.



86

Item 11.



87

Item 11.



88

Item 11.



89

Item 11.



90

Item 11.



91

Item 11.



92

Item 11.



93

Item 11.



94

Item 11.



95

Item 11.



��������	
�����	
���
�																									 ������	���	�������		���	�����	��������������	��	��� �	�!"	#$%&'&()*	+���� 	,��-	����.�����/	� �0�����1 �	���	)�2���� ��2	3� .���/	������	����	���	�����	,14-��	!���-����/	5��������	6	3�7���4� 	&$*	&$&(	8��������	����������	9� ��	! �-�:*	�//�/����	5�1��;	������/� ��� 	6	)�2���� ��2	<=	���1��/>	���	��
?�������	&$$$@		AB�	���0	C53D	�0� �4;	5�1��;	��������/E�7� ���/	7��-/	F� 	&=	;�� /	<&$&=>G	&$(H@		5�1���-	�77 �.��	I=%$J	��	��7 �.�	�� 	K1�-��;	��	�--	�0 ��	7��-/	<�0��	�//�//��	��	4�	LM�5	F��-1 �/>G		&$&$@		CDC	3�1�;	���������	���1�-	7 �4-��	�/	/� 1��1 �-	F��-1 �E-��N�2�	�F	41�-���2G		)/������@		IOG%A		8��P�
�	Q	���	������R��	�	 �K1�/�	F� 	K1�-�F�������/	��/	714-�/0��	��	�//�//	���-�/1 �/	�0��	��1-�	-�/�	-��2� 	�0��	�0�	�77� ���	&$S;�� S-�F�	�;�-�G	O	� ��/	�F	�.�-1�����	���-1��	�:�/���2	���������/*	 ���.�����/E����F�������/	��	/���*	���	�.�-1���	��0� 	��/�2�/G		T��	F� �/	 �/7�����	��	�0�	/�-���������	���	�0�	�.�-1�����	���������	/�-�����	�A!	)�2���� ��2	<50� -�/���*	35>	F� 	 �������������G			��
��	�8�
��		�A!	5��� ���@		5�/�	�/�������	��	I'=*%&$	�.� 	�	((&S��-���� 	��;	7� ���	��	/�1�;E �7� �	��	�0�	O	� ��/	�F	�.�-1�����G	U��0	I(*$$$	F� 	 ���41 /�4-�	�:7��/�/	���	($V	������2���;*	�0�	����-	7 �W���	��/�	�/	IH&*=$$	��	4�	F1����	F ��	&$(X�	YB	C���	6	B�0� 	+�7 �.�����/	,��	,��-/	6	%$(($$((S=%%OZ	���0	�	4�-����	�F	I%&&*H=$G	�����	��
�����������	��	
���
��	[\\]̂_̀	ab̀	ĉddeaà̀ fg	]̀ĥdd̀ ijkaêi	â	klk]j	ĉia]kha	â	mno	p̂]	�!"#$%&'&()*	+���� 	,��-	����.�����/	� �0�����1 �	���	)�2���� ��2	3� .���/G	�8����	���	
���
�	������	A�����	��	�77 �.�E���;	��� �	�F	���� ���	F� 	+���� 	,��-	����.�����/	� �0�����1 �	���	)�2���� ��2	3� .���/	��	�A!	)�2���� ��2G		qrst	utrvw	xyzt{|}t	~�	�r��	t�|z	���������	t�r{r�y{r�	�yr�	zyt	{r��~{r	xy�zt�	xy�z}~�	|vv{y�|��	ut|��	ty	v{y}rr�	�~t�	rsr}�t~z�	}yzt{|}t�		
96

Item 12.



RFQ 042721E

Summary Score Sheet

Evaluators Name of Company Name of Company 
Beaufort Design 

Build RMF Engineering
C. Atkinson 92 83
S. Loper 91 95
M. Watts 86 89
M. Roseneau 89 93
W. Campbell 90 80
TOTALS: 358 360

1. RMF Engineering 360
2. Beaufort Design Build 358

Beaufort County Indoor Pool Resurfacing Architecture and Engineering Services

97

Item 12.



194 Seven Farms Dr., Suite G            OFFICE  843.971.9639

Charleston, South Carolina 29492    WEB  rmf.com

August 17, 2021

Beaufort County

2266 Boundary Street

Beaufort, SC 29902

Attention: Mr. J. Wes Campbell

Beaufort County Construction Manager

Reference: Beaufort County Indoor Pools Study

RFQ NO.042721E

Engineering Services Proposal

Dear Wes,

RMF Engineering, Inc. (RMF) is pleased to submit this proposal to perform the mechanical, electrical and plumbing 

(MEP) engineering services for the above referenced project.  Subcontractors to RMF will be ADC Engineering for 

structural engineering and FWA Group for architectural services. Find the subcontractors proposals attached. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The design team has been hired to evaluate the options to repair, modify or replace three existing indoor pool 

facilities.

1 Blue Dolphin Drive, Beaufort

35 State Rd S-7-266, Beaufort

55 Pritchard Street, Bluffton

The project is a two-phase project. The first phase is the study to evaluate and select the options for each facility; 

the second phase is to provide the design documents for the selected options. 

The deliverable for this phase of the project (Phase 1) will be a written report including any photo documentation, 

plans, renderings and associated opinion of costs for each of the scope items described below.

Scope Item 1 – Existing Building Evaluations

The design team will perform Building Condition Assessments for the three indoor pool buildings and support 

spaces. The assessments will cover the structural, architectural, envelope, mechanical and electrical equipment, 

and systems. The assessments will include a review of the existing program spaces, functions and code compliance 

as they relate to the current occupancy and usage per the documents received at the July 8, 2021 Owner Review 

meeting.  We will generally follow ASTM E 2018-08 guidelines for assessments as they apply to the scope of work 

above. RMF will perform HVAC load calculations on the existing natatoriums to determine if the existing HVAC is 

sized appropriately for its current service.

98

Item 12.



                                                                                     Page 2

The assessment team will not perform any destructive investigation of any type.  Our assessment does not include 

hazardous materials investigation, survey or sampling.  The design team will not start or operate any equipment in 

the facility. The design team will not evaluate the pool heating, cooling or filtration equipment.  

Scope Item 2a – Existing Building Renovations

The design team will provide an itemized list of suggested upgrades to the buildings and associated costs. These 

upgrades will be the upgrades required to repair or replace failing equipment or systems or to bring the building 

up to code compliance. Due to the difference of deterioration at each building it is understood that each building 

will have its own list of upgrades and all upgrades may not be suggested for each building.

Scope Item 2b – Existing Building Modifications

The design team will provide a description and opinion of costs for up to three (3) options for providing 

removal/retractable enclosures for the pool buildings which may include decoupling the support spaces from the 

pools. 

Scope Item 3 – New Pools 

The design team will provide a description and opinion of costs for two (2) new pools incorporating owner 

programming and occupancy usage based on the documents received at the July 8, 2021 Owner Review meeting.

No work for Phase 2 will be completed under this contract. Once Phase 1 is complete a fee can be negotiated for 

developing the bidding/construction documents for Phase 2 at the owner’s request.

It is understood that Beaufort County has the facility as-builts in PDF format. For this project the design team will 

use the as-builts to develop Revit files for our use. The design team will modify the Revit file with any conditions in 

the field that do not match the as-builts.

COST ESTIMATING

Schematic level opinion of construction cost will be provided for Scope Items 2a, 2b and 3.

PROJECT MEETINGS

RMF will participate in three (3) owner review meetings in Beaufort, South Carolina with the owner and the design 

team during the evaluation period. The project will not progress until the review meeting has occurred.

RMF will generate and distribute formal meeting minute documentation from each meeting. 

DELIVERABLES

The final deliverable for this project will be a PDF report describing the existing conditions, proposed 

modifications, opinion of constructions costs and renderings

There will be no specifications or construction design documents generated for this project.

99

Item 12.



                                                                                     Page 3

PROPOSED SCHEDULE

This schedule is preliminary and will be finalized with the owner once the project is approved to move forward. 

The proposed schedule does not include delays for extended review periods, etc. 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FEE

Fixed engineering costs shall be as follows and are good for 60 calendar days from the date of this proposal.  

Note: Invoices will be sent each month based on percent of work completed.  Payment is due within forty-five 

(45) days of invoices.  All amounts not paid within this time frame are subject to interest payment of 1-1/2 

percent each month on the unpaid balance.  RMF cannot work without a signed agreement on the fee and an 

executed contract. 

Project Phase Days After NTP

Existing Building Field Surveys 14

25% Phase 1 Report (No costs, No renderings) 35

Owner Review Meeting 42

75% Phase 1 Report 63

Owner Review Meeting 70

95% Phase 1 Report (Renderings as Requested) 91

Owner Review Meeting 98

Final Phase 1 Report 112

Project Phase Fee

     Field Surveys $ 2,597.00

     Phase 1 Report – 25% 6,491.00

     Phase 1 Report – 75% 6,491.00

     Phase 1 Report – 95% 6,491.00

     Phase 1 Report Final 3,895.00

     Sub-Total $ 25,965.00

Supplemental Services

     ADC Structural 21,600.00

     FWA Group 21,895.00

     Convert As-Builts to Revit 3,960.00

     Rendering Each – $1,700.00 TBD

     Sub-Total – Supplemental Services $ 47,455.00

Expenses

     Reimbursable 1,000.00

     Sub-Total – Expenses $ 1,000.00

Project Total $ 74,420.00

100

Item 12.



                                                                                     Page 4

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

Reimbursable expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic, Supplemental and Additional Services and 

include expenses incurred directly related to the project, including travel, reproduction, meals, and parking.  

Reimbursable expenses will be billed at one hundred ten (110%/1.1) percent of direct cost.  We anticipate that 

our reimbursable cost for expenses will be approximately $1,000.00.  If reimbursables are exceeded, RMF will 

notify the client prior to any additional expenses being incurred.

HOURLY RATES

Other requested Supplemental Services can be provided on a time and material basis if requested based on the 

following schedule of hourly rates:

Principal $220.00 Design Engineer $105.00

Associate $190.00 Designer $100.00

Project Manager $165.00 CAD Technician $75.00

Project Engineer $125.00 Technical Support $75.00

OPTIONAL SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES (NOT INCLUDED IN BASIC SERVICES FEE ABOVE)

Scope Increase:  All fees are based upon the total project construction cost, proposed gross square feet (GSF) of 

building area and the percentage of MEP/FP building cost listed.  If the scope of the building increases by more 

than 10% of the proposed building costs, GSF or MEP/FP construction cost listed, then additional fees will be 

required to account for the increased MEP scope.

LCCA Analysis:  Provide life cycle cost analysis for mechanical or architectural systems to determine the energy 

savings associated with mechanical or architectural alternatives. 

Advanced Planning:  Perform Advanced planning/Pre-Design services to evaluate MEP strategies for multiple 

building options or future buildings/additions.  This may include economic feasibility. 

Site Utility Systems:  Design for site underground thermal utility distribution for chilled water, hot water, steam 

and condensate, as well as medium voltage electrical, security, and telecommunications.  

Commissioning:  Perform Cx services including design review, preparation of pre-functional and functional 

equipment test procedures, witnessing of functional testing, and Cx reports. 

Design Changes:  Design changes made after substantial completion of the final submission may require 

additional engineering services regardless of whether the change was initiated by the owner, architect, or 

architect’s sub-consultant. 

Advanced Energy Modeling:  Provide detailed comparative analysis by applying sophisticated building energy use 

simulation techniques to review various designs and how those changes affect the overall energy usage of the 

facility.  This effort is for modeling beyond that included in the Sustainable Certification Design Services indicated 

above.

Electrical Engineering Studies:  Perform a fault current, coordination, and arc flash hazard analysis of the facility.

In the absence of any other executed contract this letter shall incorporate the general conditions of the AIA B105–

2017, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, except as noted otherwise by this proposal.  

101

Item 12.



                                                                                     Page 5

We appreciate the opportunity to work with you on this project.  Please contact me to discuss any questions, 

concerns, or scoping issues.  

Sincerely,

RMF ENGINEERING, INC. 

Don Zimmerman III, PE, CEM

Associate

APPROVED:

DATE:

102

Item 12.



August 4, 2021
Via Email

Page 1 of 3
Don Zimmerman
RMF Engineering
194 Seven Farms Road, Suite G
Charleston, South Carolina 29492

Subject: Proposal for Structural Engineering Services
Beaufort County Pool Renovations
Beaufort County, SC 
ADC Project No. 21274

Dear Don:

ADC Engineering, Inc. appreciates the opportunity to submit the following proposal for your 
consideration.  Our understanding of the scope of services and proposed fee are as follows:

SCOPE:
Our proposed scope of services includes the basic services detailed below for (3) three indoor pool 
buildings and support spaces located at public schools in Beaufort County, South Carolina (Battery 
Creek, Beaufort, and Bluffton).  The basic services include the following:

Phase 1 
Phase 1 of the project will be to perform visual structural assessments of the three referenced 
existing pools and provide written reports with findings and recommendations to the Client. ADC will 
perform an Existing Building Condition Assessment (EBCA) for each of the three indoor pool 
buildings and support spaces referenced above. The assessments will cover a visual assessment of 
the existing structural systems, a review of the existing program spaces, functions and code 
compliance as they relate to the current occupancy and usage per the documents received at the 
July 8, 2021 Owner Review meeting.  ADC will generally follow ASTM E 2018-08 guidelines for 
assessments as they apply. ADC will generate a written report for each building outlining our findings 
and recommendations. This Phase will include up to 3 report submissions and Owner review 
meetings.

Phase 2
Phase 2 of the project will be to provide structural narratives, opinions of costs and schematic level 
designs for options to renovate or modify the existing buildings based on the EBCA reporting from 
Phase 1.

Scope Item 2a - Existing Building Renovations
The design team will provide an itemized list of suggested upgrades to the buildings and associated 
costs. These upgrades will be the upgrades required to repair or replace failing equipment or 
systems or to bring the building up to code compliance. Due to the difference of deterioration at each 

103

Item 12.



21274.PRP-LTR (S).2021 0714.RMF.BeaufortPools.doc
ADC Project No. 21274

PAGE 2 OF 3

building it is understood that each building will have its own list of upgrades and all upgrades may not 
be suggested for each building. Deliverables will include a narrative and opinion of costs for each 
building.
Scope Item 2b – Existing Building Modifications
The design team will provide a description and opinion of costs for up to three (3) options for 
providing removal/retractable enclosures for the pool buildings which may include decoupling the 
support spaces from the pools. The deliverable will include a narrative, opinion of costs, schematic 
level plans and renderings to be coordinated with the Design Team.

Phase 3
Phase 3 of the project will be to provide a structural systems description and opinion of costs for the 
design of two (2) new pools incorporating owner programming and occupancy usage based on the 
documents received at the July 8, 2021, Owner Review meeting. The deliverable will include a 
narrative, opinion of costs, schematic level plans and renderings to be coordinated with the Design 
Team.

LIMITATIONS:
The basic scope of services is limited to that outlined above for Phases 1-3 and specifically does not 
include the following:

Destructive techniques will not be utilized. All assessments will be limited to visually 
accessible elements only. No disassembly or removal of components or component elements 
will be performed.
Design Development Level Documents and Specifications
Construction Level Documents and Specifications
Construction Administration Services
Value engineering services associated with scope or budget reduction
Testing Services

FEES:
The proposed fee for this scope of work is outlined below plus expenses.  Expenses may include 
mileage, reproduction, photography, and/or delivery with a ten percent overhead fee affixed.  Below 
is a detailed fee summary of our services and deliverables:

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

Phase 1 – EBCAs and Reporting $ 9,000.00
Phase 2a – Existing Building Renovations $ 5,400.00
Phase 2b – Existing Building Modifications $ 3,600.00
Phase 3 – New Pool Designs $ 3,600.00
STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING TOTAL $ 21,600.00

Each individual milestone stage fee will be billed immediately upon completion of the stage. ADC will 
not proceed to the next phase without Owner, review, comments, and direction to do so. 

104

Item 12.



21274.PRP-LTR (S).2021 0714.RMF.BeaufortPools.doc
ADC Project No. 21274

PAGE 3 OF 3

Services other than those outlined in the Basic Services Scope will be provided as requested as an 
additional service.  Unless agreed upon otherwise, additional services will be billed as hourly 
services in accordance with ADC Engineering’s hourly rate schedule plus 1.1 times actual expenses.

In the absence of any other executed contract this letter shall incorporate the general conditions of 
the architect – engineer AIA standard contract C401, except as noted otherwise by this proposal.

If acceptable, please sign where indicated below, keep one copy and return one copy to our office.  
Your signature will serve as our Notice to Proceed.  For all purchase orders, billing/invoices and 
payments, please make sure to always reference the ADC project number.

Thank you for considering ADC Engineering, Inc.  If you have any questions or comments, please do 
not hesitate to call. 

Sincerely,
ADC Engineering, Inc.

Jeremy Williams, P.E.

ACCEPTED BY:  
RMF Engineering Date

This Proposal may be accepted by executing where indicated herein and returning the executed Proposal within ninety (90) days of the date of this 
Proposal.  After ninety (90) days, this Proposal and its contents become invalid and will be voided.

105

Item 12.



106

Item 12.



107

Item 12.



108

Item 12.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Discussion on financing for the Hilton Head Island Airport Expansion  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Meeting  09/20/2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Hayes Williams, Interim Chief Financial Officer  

15 Minutes  

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

There is funding needed for the Hilton Head Island Airport Expansion.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The total expansion project is expected to cost approximately $52M. The project has established 
funding sources of $22M leaving a need of approximately $30M. The proposal would be to fund 
$20M to $30M with a revenue bond from the Local Hospitality Tax fund. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The Hilton Head Island Airport brings approximately $405M in revenues to Beaufort SC. Funding this 
expansion with Local Hospitality Tax Funds would allow for progress of the expansion. It would be a 
millage neutral source of funding.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends that Council allow them to proceed to finance the Hilton Head Island Airport in an 
amount not to exceed $30m with Local Hospitality Tax Funds. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve staff to proceed to Council with the revenue bond. 

 

109

Item 13.



HHI Airport Terminal Expansion 
Financial Options

P U B L I C  FAC I L I T I E S  

C O M M I T T E E

S E P T E M B E R  2 0 , 2 0 21

110

Item 13.



Established 
Funding

The Hilton Head Island Terminal Expansion

project includes 4 gates, 3 jet bridges and 1

walkout. The estimated cost of the project is $52

million. Below are established funding sources:

$20 million FAA Grants

$1 million SC Aeronautics Commission

$1 million Airport Funded

With $22 million established, how will Beaufort 

County fund the remaining cost?

111

Item 13.



Funding 
Solution

Potential Sources

Additional Federal Grants
Additional State Grants
Local Grants

Potential Local Funding Options

Revenue Bond issuance by pledging local accommodations and

hospitality taxes. In order to obtain the best interest rates and

the highest credit rating, both accommodations and hospitality

must be pledged. The debt service will come from hospitality

tax only.

To keep this project moving in a

timely manner, Administration is

pursuing local funding options.

112

Item 13.



Annual Revenue Collected

FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021

Accommodation Tax $1.25M $1.24M $1.23M $1.7M

Hospitality Tax $2.30M $2.34M $2.30M $2.53M

Total Revenue $3.55M $3.58M $3.53M $4.23M

113

Item 13.



Scenarios for Revenue Bond

SCENARIO 1 SCENARIO 2 SCENARIO 3

Bond Amount $20M $30M $34M

Average Debt Service $1.35M $2.0M $2.3M

Average Local Hospitality Tax 

over the past 4 years

$2.36M $2.36M $2.36M

Amount left in Local Hospitality 

Tax to award

$1.01M $360K $60K

114

Item 13.



Estimated yearly debt services of $2.3M in 
order to issue $34M in Revenue Bonds

PROS

The revenues from hospitality tax meet one of the 

exclusive purposes designated by ordinance

Zero millage increase for the taxpayers of Beaufort 

County

General Obligation Bond capacity will be maintained 

for other County projects

Airport acts as a tourist conduit of Beaufort County 

and will assist in increases of tax revenue for future 

expenditures

CONS

$46M payback over 20 years unless paid in less 

term

Local agencies will only be able to apply for local 

accommodations tax and the remaining unspent 

hospitality tax

115

Item 13.



Tourist Destinations

• Tanger Outlets

• Victoria Bluff Heritage Preserve

• Heyward House Museum

• Old Town Bluffton

• The Church of the Cross

• May River Theatre

• New River Linear Trail

• Pinckney Island National Wildlife Refuge

• Garvey House

• Hilton Head National Golf Club

116

Item 13.



Recommendation
To pursue revenue bond funding of $20M, not to exceed, $30M

117

Item 13.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Wimbee Creek Fishing Pier – Condition Assessment  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – September 20, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Andrea Atherton, Director – Transportation Engineering 

(5 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

McSweeney Engineering performed routine inspections of the pier deck and structure in 2018 and 2019.  As 
requested by the County in 2020 they provided an analysis of six (6) repair and demolition alternatives along 
with probable costs.  

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Alternatives A through F and the cost for a new timber pier are presented for consideration. Alternates range 
from “do nothing” to various rehabilitation scenarios and a complete demolition alternative with an option 
for constructing a new timber pier.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Range of construction costs $650,000 to $1,800,000. Engineering/permitting 10% +/- construction costs. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Committee to select preferred alternative and make recommendation for staff to proceed with A/H tax grant 
application to fund Engineering/Permitting costs.  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to either accept/deny proceeding with A/H tax grant application for preferred alternative.  

 

 

118

Item 14.



Wimbee Creek 
Fishing Pier

Public Facilities Committee Meeting  

September 20, 2021

119

Item 14.



Background

 Located at the end of Wimbee Landing Road. 

 Approximately 314 ft. long and 11 ft. wide.

 Former railroad trestle.

 Routine inspection conducted in 2018 & 2019 by McSweeney.

 Severe deterioration and fire damage to key load bearing elements

 For safety, last 25’ has been fenced to restrict public access.

 McSweeney Engineers contracted to evaluate repair and demolition 

alternatives and opinion of probable costs for each scenario. 

120

Item 14.



Inspection November 2019

 Overall Rating – Fair to Serious

 Deck

 Fair – cracking in concrete surfaces

 Superstructure

 Poor – displacement of bearing pads

 Substructure

 Poor to Serious – fire damage and significant deterioration of timber structural elements.

 Structure is near the end of its service life due to advanced deterioration of 

key load bearing elements

121

Item 14.



Alternatives – February 2020 Report 
Prepared by: McSweeney Engineers

 A – Do Nothing. Significant safety Liability

 B – Full rehabilitation.    $1.5M to 1.8M.     SL 25 years

 C – Partial rehabilitation. $1.1M to 1.3M SL 25 years

 D – Partial rehab/Alum deck $1.1M to 1.3M SL 25 years

 E – Partial rehab/timber deck $1.0M to 1.2M SL 25 years

 F- Complete demo/removal $650K to 800K

 New Timber Pier $350k to $400K SL 50 years

122

Item 14.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

495C Meeting St Charleston, SC 

29403  

(843) 974-5621 

www.mcsweeneyengineers.com 

Wimbee Creek Fishing Pier                                                       
  Alternatives and Cost Analysis 
         February 2020 

 

123

Item 14.



Beaufor
Wimbee

 
 
1.0  IN

1.1  P
1.2  P

 
2.0  St

2.1  2
2.2  2

 
3.0  Al

3.1 

3.2 

3.3 

3.4 

3.5 

3.6 

3.7 

4.0  CO

5.0  Al

 

rt County, 
e Creek Fis

TRODUCTIO

Project Site ..
Project Scope

tructure Con

2019 Structur
2019 Recomm

lternatives A

Alternative A

Alternative 

Alternative 

Alternative 

Alternative 

Alternative 

New Fishing

ONCLUSION

lternatives A

South Car
shing Pier 

ON .................

.....................
e ...................

ditions and E

ral Conditions
mendations ...

Analysis ........

A – Do Noth

B – Full Reh

C – Save 5/D

D – Rehab S

E – Rehab S

F – Demolish

g Pier ...........

 AND RECO

Analysis Matr

rolina 
Alternative

TABLE O

.....................

.....................

.....................

Evaluation ...

s and Evaluat
.....................

.....................

ing ...............

abilitation ...

Demo 3 .........

Substructure 

Substructure 

h Existing ....

.....................

MMENDATIO

rix .................

es and Cos

 
OF CONTE

......................

.....................

.....................

......................

ion ...............
.....................

......................

.....................

.....................

.....................

Install New 

Install New T

.....................

.....................

ONS ..............

......................

st Analysis

ENTS 

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

Aluminum S

Timber Supe

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

s 

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

Superstructu

erstructure ..

.....................

.....................

.....................

.....................

 

......................

.....................

.....................

......................

.....................

.....................

......................

.....................

.....................

.....................

re .................

.....................

.....................

.....................

......................

......................

 

....... 1 

....... 1 

....... 1 

....... 2 

....... 2 

....... 2 

....... 2 

....... 3 

....... 3 

....... 4 

....... 4 

....... 5 

....... 5 

....... 6 

....... 6 

....... 7 

124

Item 14.



 
 

1  

 

1.0  INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Project Site 

 
 The Wimbee Creek Fishing Pier is located at the end of Wimbee Landing Road near Dale 

in Beaufort County, South Carolina.   The pier measures approximately 314 ft long by 11 ft wide.  

The structure is a former railroad trestle of unknown age that has been repurposed for use as a 

public fishing pier.  As such, a new concrete deck and handrail assemblies were placed on the 

original structure.  The figure below provides an aerial view of the Wimbee Creek Fishing Pier. 

  

 

 
Figure 1.  Aerial View of the Wimbee Creek Fishing Pier 

McSweeney Engineers conducted routine comprehensive inspection of the structure in 

2018 and 2019.  The results of that inspection indicated severe deterioration and fire damage to 

key load bearing elements.   

1.2 Project Scope 

 
Following submittal of the routine structural inspection reports, McSweeney Engineers, LLC was 

contacted by Beaufort County Engineering in order to evaluate possible demolition and repair 

alternatives for the site and provide opinion of probable costs associated with each scenario .  

The scope of this study includes: 

 Review of the previous inspection reports  

 Evaluate potential repair scenarios  

 Evaluate full and partial demolition scenarios 

Wimbee 
Creek 

Fishing 
Pier 

Ebb 

Flood 

125

Item 14.



 
 

2  

 

 Provide an opinion of probable cost 

The purpose of this study is to provide guidance to Beaufort County in determining the 

most suitable solution for the structure.    

2.0  Structure Conditions and Evaluation 
 

2.1 2019 Structural Conditions and Evaluation 

 
The last routine inspection of the Wimbee Creek Fishing Pier was conducted on 

November, 7 2019.  Readers are encouraged to read and review the previous inspection report in 

conjunction with this study; however, the most significant findings are summarized below. 

 

At the time of the previous inspection, the structural condition of the Wimbee Creek 

Fishing Pier was rated from Fair to Serious.   A brief recap of these ratings is presented below: 

 

Deck 

 Rated as Fair due to cracks located in concrete surfaces 

Superstructure  

 Rated as Poor due to the displacement of the bearing pads 

Substructure 

 Rated as Poor to Serious due to fire damage and significant deterioration of 

timber structural elements 

 

2.2 2019 Recommendations 

 
The 2019 inspection report noted that the condition of the structure had not changed 

appreciably since the 2018 inspection; however, the report also indicated that the structure was 

near the end of its service life due to advanced deterioration of key load bearing elements.  With 

this understanding, the 2019 report provided a generalized list of potential repair strategies and 

also noted that the cost of any repairs should be weighed against the cost of wholesale 

replacement of the structure. 

3.0   Alternatives Analysis 

The alternatives discussed in the following sections do not cover every potential option 

for the structure.   The alternatives listed herein present generalized approaches and costs to 

repair, replacement, and demolition of the structure.  Budgetary cost information was obtained 

126

Item 14.



 
 

3  

 

from our in-house expertise in marine construction and through discussion with a local marine 

contractor.  The intent is for this document to be used as a decision making tool for planning and 

budgeting purposes.   

3.1  Alternative A – Do Nothing 

The "Do Nothing" was considered during this study.   In the short term this option would 

cost the County nothing; however, the current condition of the fishing pier is a significant safety 

liability.  Therefore, this option is not warranted.    

3.2 Alternative B – Full Rehabilitation 

This alternative considers a full rehabilitation of the existing fishing pier and includes the 

following items:   

 Installing 14 structural pile jackets at Bent 1 

 Repair bearing pad at the Abutment (requires superstructure jacking or removal) 

 Installing 84, 20 ft long protective wraps at Bents 2 through 7 

 Rebuilding the pile caps at Bents 6 and 7 (requires superstructure jacking or 

removal) 

 Install 3x6 marine treated cross bracing at each Bents 1 through 7  

 Install 12, 25 ft long non-structural pile jackets at Bent 8. 

 Install new galvanized hardware 

 Install miscellaneous repairs: 

o vandal-proof luminaries  

o fence repairs 

o shoreline erosion repairs 

        In order to accomplish this scenario it likely that jacking, shoring, or temporary removal of 

the structure have to occur in order to in order to gain access to the pile caps.  Although exact 

methods and costs are difficult to pinpoint they are likely to be complex and expensive.  In 

addition, the work necessary to rehabilitate the substructure would involve the use of commercial 

divers.  These two factors require the use of specialized personnel and equipment which will 

significantly increase project costs.  It is likely that this alternative will cost between $1.5M and 

$1.8M. 

 The main disadvantage of this project, other than cost, is we estimate that these repairs 

will only add an additional 25 years of service life to the structure. 

 

127

Item 14.



 
 

4  

 

3.3 Alternative C – Save 5/Demo 3  

 
 Alternative C considers salvaging and rehabilitating Bents 1 through 5 and complete 

removal of Bents 6 through 8 (fire damaged portion).  This alternative would include the following: 

 Installing 14 structural pile jackets at Bent 1 

 Repair bearing pad at the Abutment (requires superstructure jacking or removal) 

 Installing 56, 20 ft long protective wraps at Bents 2 through 5 

 Install 3x6 marine treated cross bracing at each Bents 1 through 5  

 Install new galvanized hardware 

 Install miscellaneous repairs (previously indicated) 

 Demolition of Bents (and Spans) 6 through 8 

 

 Similar to Alternative B, Alternative C would also require jacking or shoring of the 

superstructure and divers.  The shoring and/or jacking efforts necessary to repair the Abutment 

can likely be done by heavy equipment staged from land which will reduce cost.  We estimate 

that the cost for this alternative will be between $1.1M and $1.3M.  Similar to Alternative B, the 

lifespan if this option is limited by the current age of the substructure.  At most, an additional 25 

years of service life can be expected with this option. 

3.4 Alternative D – Rehab Substructure Install New Aluminum Superstructure 

This alternatives considers removing the existing heavy steel superstructure and 

installing a lighter aluminum framed superstructure.  In addition, Bents 6 through 8 would be 

removed.  This alternative would include the following: 

 Installing 14 structural pile jackets at Bent 1 

 Modify Abutment to accept new superstructure 

 Installing 56, 20 ft long protective wraps at Bents 2 through 5 

 Install 3x6 marine treated cross bracing at each Bents 1 through 5  

 Install new galvanized hardware 

 Demolition of Bents (and Spans) 6 through 8 

 Install new 10 ft wide aluminum superstructure 

 

 This alternative would remove the existing superstructure in its entirety and remove Bents 

6 through 8.  A new aluminum framed superstructure would be lowered into the rehabilitated pile 

caps.  This option would remove the requirement for jacking or temporarily supporting the 

superstructure.  Divers would be required to complete the underwater repairs.   

  

128

Item 14.



 
 

5  

 

 One disadvantage of this option is that the existing span lengths are approximately 45 ft 

long.  Most commercially available aluminum fixed piers are comprised of aluminum channel 

sections.  As such, maximum span lengths are generally a maximum of 20 feet.  Given the 

current span arrangement of approximately 45 ft it is likely that the aluminum superstructure 

would likely have to be in an truss or arch configuration.  This will significantly drive up cost. 

Similar to the previous two alternatives, this repair will be limited by the age of the existing 

substructure.  We expect to cost between $1.1M and $1.3M. 

3.5 Alternative E – Rehab Substructure Install New Timber Superstructure 

This alternatives is similar to Alternative D in that it considers removing the existing heavy 

steel superstructure; however the new superstructure would be timber construction.  Bents 6 and 

7 would be removed, Bent 8 would remain in the water way.  This alternative would include the 

following: 

 Installing 14 structural pile jackets at Bent 1 

 Modify Abutment to accept new superstructure 

 Installing 56, 20 ft long protective wraps at Bents 2 through 5 

 Install 3x6 marine treated cross bracing at each Bents 1 through 5  

 Install new galvanized hardware 

 Demolition of Bents 6 and 7 (Bent 8 to remain) 

 Install new 10 ft wide timber superstructure 

 Install new bents to support new timber superstructure. 

 

 This alternative would remove the existing superstructure in its entirety and remove Bents 

6 and 7.  Bent 8 would remain in the water.  The abutment would be modified and a new timber 

superstructure would be placed on the existing pile bents.   

  

 One disadvantage of this option is that the existing span lengths are approximately 45 ft 

long.  As such, additional bents would need to be installed in order to support the new timber 

spans.  We expect to cost between $1M and $1.2M. 

3.6  Alternative F – Demolish Existing 

 Alternative E consists of complete removal and disposal of the existing fishing pier.  At an 

estimated cost of $650K to $800K this is likely to be the least expensive alternative.  The primary 

drawback associated with this option is the lack of a recreational fishing pier at Wimbee Creek 

Landing. 

129

Item 14.



 
 

6  

 

3.7  New Fishing Pier  

 As a point of reference for this study, we estimate that a 314 ft long by 11 ft wide timber 

fishing pier with timber piles and marine grade lumber will cost approximately $350,000 with a 

service life of approximately 50 years with the proper maintenance. 

4.0   CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

This study presented an engineering opinion regarding potential rehabilitation and 

demolition options at the Wimbee Creek Fishing Pier.  Although there are many potential options, 

the intent of this document was to generalize several thought out approaches and present them 

to Beaufort County personnel for consideration in the budgeting and long-range planning  

processes.   

 

Based on our analysis, we recommend that the Beaufort County consider Alternate F - 

Complete Demolition.  We believe that this alternative will remove a significant liability from 

Beaufort County infrastructure while at the same time creating a "blank slate" from which to work.  

As shown in the last paragraph of the preceding section, the cost of a comparable fishing pier 

constructed of timber will cost approximately $350,000 and last approximately 50 years.  With this 

understanding, demolishing the existing structure and installing a new one will likely cost 

Beaufortonians the same or less than the other options listed for consideration.   

 

At the end of this report we have provided an Alternatives Analysis Matrix.  This matrix 

addresses the pros and cons of each alternative and their approximate costs.  It is our hope that 

this report and analysis aids Beaufort County in determining a suitable solution. 

 

McSweeney Engineers greatly appreciates the opportunity to provide this report and 

looks forward to assisting further in this project. If you need further clarification or have any 

questions please do not hesitate to contact me. 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 McSweeney Engineers, LLC 

 

 

 

 
 William Barna, P.E. 
 Project Manager 

130

Item 14.



 

 

B
W

5

*

Beaufort Cou
Wimbee Cree

5.0   Alternativ

Alternative 

A 
Do Nothing 

B 
Full Rehab 

C 
Save 5/Demo 3

D 
Rehab 

Substructure 
New Aluminum
Superstructure 

E 
Rehab 

Substructure 
New Timber 

Superstructure 
F 

Complete Demo
*Approximate cost o

                

nty, South Ca
k Fishing Pie

ves Analysis 

- No

- Re

3 
- Lower 

 

- Part

- Part

- Low

o 
- 

- R
of new timber fishin

                          

arolina 
r Alternatives

Matrix 

Pros 

o Additional Cost 
 

 

eestablish existing
structure 

 

Cost of Alternativ
 

tial Use of Existin
Structure 

 

tial Use of Existin
Structure 

west Cost of Repa
Options 

Least Cost 
Reduced Liability 
ng pier $350,000 - 

                           

s and Cost An

- 

g 
- 

ve B 

- 

ng 
- 

ng 

air 

- 

- 

Service Life 50 yea

      7 

nalysis 

 

Cons 

Significant Liabi
Recomme

Limited by Age 
Substruc
- Cost 

 
Limited by Age 

Substruc
- Cost 

 
 
 

Limited by Age 
Substruc
- Cost 

 

Limited by Age 
Substruc

New Bents Must
- Cost 

 

 -  No Fishing Pie

ars 

 

 

lity (Do Not 
end) 

of Existing 
cture 

 

of Existing 
cture 

 

of Existing 
cture 

 

of Existing 
cture 
t Be Driven 
 

er Structure 

 

Approximat

$0

$1.5M to

$1.1M to

$1.1M to

$1M to 

$650,0
$800

te Cost 
Anti

Se

0 

o $1.8M 

o $1.3M 

o $1.3M 

$1.2M 

000 to 
0,000 

cipated 
ervice 
Life 

0 

25 Yrs 

25 Yrs 

25 Yrs 

25 Yrs 

0 

131

Item 14.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

SC 170 Access Management Plan North  

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – September 20, 2021 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Juliana Smith, Long Range Planner – Zoning and Planning 

 (5 mins) 

 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Per Resolution 2002-1, Beaufort County adopted the Robert Smalls Parkway Joint Corridor Plan, a planning 
effort conducted between the City of Beaufort, Town of Port Royal, and Beaufort County to address access 
management on SC 170 from Parris Island Gateway to the Broad River Bridge. The plan is nearly 20 years old.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Beaufort County and the City of Beaufort are conducting an update from Parris Island Gateway to Castle Rock 
Road. Engineering services from Andrews Engineering have been procured under small A&E.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

$49,900 has been funded from TAG fees for the access management plan update. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

For information only 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

For information only  

 

 

 

 

132

Item 16.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A 

MODIFICATION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENT ASSOCIATED WITH PARCEL R112-031-

000-0628-0000    

 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee Meeting 9-20-21 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Engineering 

Neil J. Desai, P.E., Public Works Director 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Beaufort County was granted a 40’ drainage easement by William D. Trask and Harold E. Trask, Jr, 

recorded in Deed Book 567 on Pages 1768-1769 on 12- 28-1990. The existing drainage ditch does not lie 

in the area depicted on the Original Easement Plat, and a portion of the Original Drainage Easement associated 

with parcel  R112-031-000-0628-0000 was abandoned. Ditch is located off Hwy 170 near Ashton Overlook Dr. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

A Modification to the original easement will correct the drainage easement location to the existing ditch 

location. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approving County Administrator to execute Modification of Drainage Easement associated 
with Parcel R112-031-000-0628-0000 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/Deny  County Administrator to execute Modification of Drainage Easement associated with 

Parcel R112-031-000-0628-0000. 

(Next Step) Move action to County Council vote on 9-27-2021 

 

133

Item 17.

http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net


 
1 

ORDINANCE NO.  2021/________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE 

A MODIFICATION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENT ASSOCIATED WITH PARCEL 

R112-031-000-0628-0000    

 

 WHEREAS, Beaufort County was granted a 40’ drainage easement by William D. Trask 

and Harold E. Trask, Jr, recorded in Deed Book 567 on Pages 1768-1769 on December 28, 1990 
(the “Original Drainage Easement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Original Drainage Easement referenced a Sketch Map titled “Drainage Canal 

Easement Across the Lands Between S.C. Hwy. 20 and S.C. Hwy. 802”, which such Sketch Map was later 

recorded in the Beaufort County Register of Deeds’ Office in Plat Book 40 at Page 52 (said Sketch Map, 

the “Original Easement Plat”); and 

WHEREAS, the existing drainage ditch does not lie in the area depicted on the Original Easement 

Plat, and a portion of the Original Drainage Easement associated with parcel  R112-031-000-0628-0000 

located in the Town of Port Royal, Beaufort County, South Carolina was abandoned ; and 

WHEREAS, a modification of the Original Drainage Easement is necessary to amend the terms 

of the Original Drainage Easement to correctly depict and describe the location of the Revised Drainage 

Easement as defined in the attached Modification of Drainage Easement (ORB 567 Page 1768) (PB 40 

Page 52); and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Beaufort County to authorize the County 

Administrator to execute the attached Modification of Drainage Easement (ORB 567 Page 1768) (PB 

40 Page 52) to correctly depict the current location of the drainage easement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Beaufort County Council hereby authorizes the 

County Administrator to execute documents associated with the revised drainage easement located 

on parcel  R112-031-000-0628-0000 as described in the attached Modification of Drainage 

Easement (ORB 567 Page 1768) (PB 40 Page 52). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

134

Item 17.

http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net
http://sc-beaufort-county.governmax.com/svc/site_authlink.asp?p=%25R112%20031%20000%200628%200000%25&r=webgis.bcgov.net


 
2 

 

ADOPTED this ____ day of __________, 2021. 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

  

  

 By: ______________________________________ 

   Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

    

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

 
 

135

Item 17.



 1 
NRPortbl 5725384v1.docx 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) MODIFICATION OF 

 ) DRAINAGE EASEMENT 

 ) (ORB 567 PAGE 1768) 

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT ) (PB 40 PAGE 52) 

THIS MODIFICATION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENT (“Modification”) is made effective 

August 1, 2021, by and between ASHTON POINTE PROPERTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Virginia 

limited partnership (“Owner”), and BEAUFORT COUNTY, a body politic and political subdivision of the 

State of South Carolina (“County”). 

WHEREAS, the Owner owns real property located in the Town of Port Royal, Beaufort County, 

South Carolina more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein 

(“Burdened Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the Owner’s predecessor in interest granted to the County a drainage easement over 

certain portions of the Burdened Property by that certain Drainage Easement dated September 7, 1990 and 

recorded in the Office of the Beaufort County Register of Deeds in Book 567 at Page 1768 (the “Original 

Drainage Easement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Original Drainage Easement referenced a Sketch Map titled “Drainage Canal 

Easement Across the Lands Between S.C. Hwy. 20 and S.C. Hwy. 802”, which such Sketch Map was later 

recorded in the Beaufort County Register of Deeds’ Office in Plat Book 40 at Page 52 (said Sketch Map, 

the “Original Easement Plat”) and 

WHEREAS, because (i) the existing drainage ditch on the Burdened Property, as constructed, does 

not lie in the area depicted on the Original Easement Plat, and (ii) a portion of the Original Drainage 

Easement was abandoned by the County, the parties hereof have agreed to this Modification to amend the 

terms of the Original Drainage Easement to correctly depict and describe the location of the Revised 

Drainage Easement, as defined and as set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for Ten Dollars and no other consideration, the legal sufficiency of which 

the parties expressly acknowledge, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Grant of Drainage Easement. Owner hereby grants, conveys and releases, and by these presents does 

grant, convey, and release unto the County, its successors and assigns, a drainage easement in, over, 

and through those areas within the Burdened Property labeled as “Proposed 40’ Ditch Esmt. (“Revised 

Drainage Easement”) on that certain plat entitled “Subdivision Plat Also Showing New Wetland 

Buffers & Ditch Easement” prepared by  Beaufort Surveying, Inc. dated February 14, 2006, last revised 

January 30, 2008, and attached hereto as Exhibit B (“Revised Drainage Easement Plat”). The County 

shall not materially disrupt nor unreasonably interfere with Owner, or its tenants, invitees, agents, 

lessees or principals’ use of the Burdened Property while exercising its rights hereunder, nor shall 

Owner materially or unreasonably interfere or impede the County’s easement rights hereunder. 

2. Modification of Original Easement and Original Easement Plat.  The Original Drainage Easement 

is hereby modified by removing all references to the Original Easement Plat and replacing the same 

with the Revised Drainage Easement Plat.  The Original Easement Plat is replaced by the Revised 

Drainage Easement Plat. The depiction and location of the Original Drainage Easement on the 

Burdened Property, as shown on the Original Easement Plat, is hereby replaced with the Revised 

Drainage Easement as depicted on the Revised Drainage Easement Plat.  To the extent the Original 

Drainage Easement granted to the County easement rights over the Burdened Property not located 

136

Item 17.



 2 
NRPortbl 5725384v1.docx 

within Revised Drainage Easement as shown on the Revised Drainage Easement Plat, such easement 

rights are hereby terminated and abandoned, including without limitation, any easement rights located 

within the hatched area on the Revised Drainage Easement Plat labeled as “To Be Filled 0.639 acres”. 

3. Modification of Original Easement Terms. The provisions and terms set forth in the Original 

Drainage Easement are hereby modified as follows: 

a. All County inspection and maintenance work to the Revised Drainage Easement shall be 

conducted between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 

Notwithstanding the preceding, the County may access the Revised Drainage Easement at any 

time and any day in the event of emergency to conduct emergency repairs or maintenance. The 

County shall maintain the Revised Drainage Easement to accommodate the flow of drainage and 

prevent the growth of weeds and underbrush within the Revised Drainage Easement. 

b. The County’s access to the Revised Drainage Easement is limited to the roadways within the 

Burdened Property. 

c. Section 4 “Special Provisions” of the Original Drainage Easement is no longer applicable and is 

hereby deleted in its entirety. 

d. The Owner shall have the right to maintain, repair and reconstruct the existing Ashton Overlook 

Drive that crosses the Revised Drainage Easement. 

e. The Owner shall have the right to use the Burdened Properly, so long as said use does not impede 

drainage through the Revised Drainage Easement or damage or compromise any drainage 

infrastructure installed by the County. Such rights shall include the right to run conduits for 

electrical, cable, internet, telephone and other utility wiring across the Revised Drainage 

Easement. 

4. Severability. In the event any provision hereof is held to be invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity 

or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof and this 

Modification shall be construed in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were 

omitted. 

5. Remedies. In the event of any breach of the terms and conditions of this Modification, the non-

breaching party shall be entitled to bring an action in law or in equity against the breaching party. All 

remedies shall be available to the non-breaching party including, but not limited to, specific 

performance and actual damages. 

6. Attorney’s Fees and Costs. In the event it is necessary for any party to this Modification to initiate 

any legal proceeding whatsoever for the purpose of enforcing its rights under this Modification, the 

prevailing party is entitled to recover any and all expenses, including but not limited to. court costs and 

reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in connection therewith, from the non-prevailing party. 

7. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed, governed and interpreted in accordance with the 

laws of State of South Carolina. 

8. Successors and Assigns. This Modification shall run with the Burdened Property and shall be binding 

upon the Owner and the County, and their respective successors and assigns. 

9. Miscellaneous. This Modification shall be recorded in the Beaufort County Register of Deeds Office. 

137

Item 17.



 3 
NRPortbl 5725384v1.docx 

10. Amendments to be Written. There are no oral understandings, terms or conditions, or no party hereto 

has relied any representations, express or implied, not contained in this Modification. This Modification 

may not be amended or further modified except by written modification executed by the parties hereto. 

  

138

Item 17.



 4 
NRPortbl 5725384v1.docx 

WITNESS our hands and seals effective as of the date first written above 

 

WITNESSES:  Ashton Pointe Property Limited Partnership, a Virginia 

limited partnership 

   By: HHHunt Corporation 

   Its: General Partner 

 

    

By: Brian C. Myers 

Its: Vice President 

  

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA ) 

  ) NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF WAKE  ) 

I, the undersigned     

 , a Notary Public for the State of North Carolina, do hereby certify 

that Brian C. Myers, Vice President of HHHunt Corporation, the general partner of Ashton Pointe 

Property Limited Partnership, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due 

execution of the foregoing instrument. 

Witness my hand and official seal this the   day of            ,  

2021. 

 (SEAL) 

Notary Public 

My commission expires:   

  

139

Item 17.



 5 
NRPortbl 5725384v1.docx 

WITNESSES:  Beaufort County, a body politic and a political subdivision 

of the State of South Carolina 

    

    

By: Eric L. Greenway 

Its: County Administrator 

  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

  ) NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF BEAUFORT  ) 

I, the undersigned     

 , a Notary Public for the State of North Carolina, do hereby certify 

that     ,  

    of Beaufort 

County, personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the 

foregoing instrument. 

Witness my hand and official seal this the   day of            ,  

2021. 

 (SEAL) 

Notary Public 

My commission expires:   

  

140

Item 17.



 6 
NRPortbl 5725384v1.docx 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Legal Description of Burdened Property 

 

  

141

Item 17.



Exhibit "B"

142

Item 17.


	Top
	Item 5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	07.19.21
	08.16.21

	Item 8.	Recommendation of award for RFQ 060821 Consulting services to provide an evaluation and study of issues related to Beaufort County Public Boat Landings ($312,9650)
	Boat Landing Study AIS
	2021-08-24 Beaufort County boat landings proposal

	Item 9.	Request to purchase Caterpillar Model 323 Excavator w/ Long Reach ($221,823.85)
	AIS - Cat 323  Long Reach
	AIS - CAT 323 Quote
	AIS - CAT 323 Specifications

	Item 10.	Public Works - Truckat Mower
	AIS - Truckat Specifications
	AIS - Truckat Mower Quote &amp; Sole Source
	Tiger Truckat Mower

	Item 11.	Public Works - Purchase of Ford F550
	AIS - Ford F550
	AIS - F550 Quote
	Specifications

	Item 12.	RECOMMENDATION TO AWARD RFQ #042721E, INDOOR POOL RENOVATIONS ARCHITECTURE AND ENGINEERING SERVICES (> $1,000)
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities...1 - BC Indoor Pool Renovations ROA
	RFQ 042721E  Summary Score Sheet
	RMF Proposal

	Item 13.	Discussion on financing for the Hilton Head Island Airport Expansion
	Revenue Bond for HHI Airport
	HHI Terminal Funding PFC 092021

	Item 14.	Wimbee Creek Fishing Pier Condition Assestment
	AIS Wimbee Creek
	Wimbee Creek Fishing Pier - Rev #1
	Wimbee Creek Fishing Pier - Alternatives and Cost - February 2020

	Item 16.	SC 170 Access Management Plan North
	AIS_PFC_Sept202021_170AccessManagement_InfoOnly

	Item 17.	Abberly Point Ordinance for Drainage Easement Modification
	AIS Abberly Pointe Modification of Drainage Easement
	Resolution Abberly Point Modification of Drainage Easement
	Abberly Pointe Modification of Drainage Easement-plw

	Bottom

